
PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
June 5, 2012 
3:35 P.M. 

 
Councilman Rico, Chairman, called the meeting of the Public Works Committee to order with 
Councilpersons Ladd, Scott, Benson, McGary, Murphy, Robinson, Berz and Gilbert present.  City 
Attorney Michael McMahan and Shirley Crownover, Assistant Clerk  to  the Council, were also 
present. 
 
Others present  included Dennis Malone,  Jim Templeton, Bill Payne, Lee Norris,  Jerry Stewart, 
Joachim Volz, Alice Cannella, Gary Hilbert, Mike Patrick, Tony Boyd, Tony Kinder, Chief Dodd, 
Johnny Feagans, Chief Kennedy, Ron Swafford, Danny Thornton, Ulystein Oates, Fredia Kitchen, 
Simone White, David  Johnson, Dan  Johnson, Daisy Madison, Donna Kelley, Missy Crutchfield, 
Dickie Hutsell, and Larry Zehnder.   
 
On motion  of  Councilman McGary,  seconded  by  Councilman Murphy,  the minutes  of  the 
previous meeting were approved. 
 
Chairman Rico called on Lee Norris, who noted that Resolutions (d) and (e) were discussed last 
week and are appointments for special unarmed police officers for the Public Works Dept.   
 
Resolution  (h) authorizes an agreement with TDOT  relative  to  the Central Avenue Extension 
from  Third  St.  to  Riverside  Drive.   Mr. Malone  gave  a  power  point  presentation  showing 
Riverside  Drive  and  Erlanger  Medical  Center  and  Third  St.,  tying  into  Blackford  Street.  
Councilwoman Robinson asked him to identify the four long cylinders.  Mr. Malone responded 
that this was the Cannon property with a large warehouse; that the “round” thing was the tank 
that belonged to the Tennessee‐American Water Co. that you could see from Riverside Drive.  
Councilwoman  Scott  asked  him  the  name  of  the  street  above  and was  told  that  this was  a 
driveway  access.    She wanted  to  know  if  there was  any  agreement  in  the  exchange  about 
paving the driveway?   Mr. Malone mentioned a contract that would be forthcoming—that we 
had  to  get  TDOT  in place  first.   Mr. Payne  added  that nothing was  “firm”, with Councilman 
Murphy noting  that  there  seemed  to be  several options and asked  if  this was  the portion of 
Riverside Drive where there was a divided highway and was told “no”. 
 
Resolution (i) was being pulled for additional information from the WWTA. 
 
Resolution  (j)  is  the  annual  contract with Hamilton  County  for  the Hamilton  County  Courts 
Community  Service  Program  to  pick  up  litter  along  the  City  rights‐of‐way  in  the  amount  of 
$60,000.00.   
 
There was technical difficulty with Resolution (k), and it was by‐passed for the moment. 
 
 



Page 2 
 

Resolution (l) authorized CHA to temporarily use the right‐of‐way located in the 1100 Block of 
Fairmont Ave. for a community marker of the townhomes. 
 
Resolution (m)  is a temporary use for McCallie School of a portion of right‐of‐way  located on 
Anderson  Ave.  for  the  school’s  ability  to  facilitate  an  internal  access  plan  for  students.  
Councilman Murphy wanted to understand why this was temporary use as Anderson Ave. goes 
into  the  side of  a hill?   Mr. Malone explained  that  it  is owned by  a private  individual—that 
McCallie School does not own it. 
 
Resolution  (n)  authorizes  payment  to  New  Hope  Presbyterian  Church  for  a  right‐of‐way 
easement relative to the Shallowford Road Widening Lifestyle Way to I‐75 on property located 
at 7301 Shallowford Rd. in an amount not to exceed $200,000.   
 
Mr. Norris then went back to Resolution (k) that authorizes an agreement with the U.S. Army 
Corps of Engineers for scope of work relative to the Flood Plain Management Services Program 
and authorizes the City to pay $150,000 as a 50% match, for a total project cost in the amount 
of $300,000.  He stated that there would be a short presentation concerning this and called on 
Tony Kinder. 
 
Mr. Kinder stated  that about a year ago we were contacted by  the U.S. Army Corps.  to do a 
watershed  issue  to  look  at  the  flooding  situation  in  greater  detail;  that  there  are  two 
questions—What and How?   He stated  that he would answer  the “What”.   “What  if  the  rain 
event that happened in Nashville in 2010 had hit here?”  He noted that the Labor Day Flood of 
2011 would have been much worse here if the preceding condition had not been so “dry”.  He 
showed pictures of the May 1st and 2nd of 2010 flood  in Nashville, noting that this was a very 
significant rainfall event.  He mentioned an 1867 flooding event that occurred here, noting that 
floods have occurred here and will occur again; that in 2003 we had a large flood; that if it had 
crested 20 ft. higher, as in Nashville, it would have gotten into the Tennessee Aquarium and the 
911 Center would have had water as well.  He noted that Nashville incurred $l.5 billion dollars 
in damage; that if the flood had occurred in Knoxville it would have been much less, but if it had 
occurred  in Chattanooga there would have been $2.4 billion dollars of damage, which  is twice 
as much property damage as Nashville had.  He also mentioned the many deaths. 
 
He stated that the first part is “What if it occurred here?”  He went on to say “What if we knew 
in advance and could keep some of the damage from occurring?”  He mentioned talks with the 
U.S. Corps of Engineers, TVA, Nashville, and TDOT; that we had put together a team to partner 
with the U.S. Corps to look at watersheds, and we would go into other details such as how deep 
the streams are and how much they would flood; that we would have notification in time to get 
barricades ready and for people to get to safety.   
 
 
 



Page 3 
 
The meeting was  turned  over  to  Porter Williams with  the U.S. Army  Corps  of  Engineers  to 
answer  the question of “How?”   Mr. Williams explained  the  risks, stating  this was a Program 
based on an ongoing Study  in Nashville;  that we would be  taking a multi‐phase approach  to 
reducing flooding; that the end goal was to look at the prediction of rainflow.  He talked about 
tools  to be used by emergency people during storm events;  that we would update Hydraulic 
Modeling  in  regards  to  South  Chickamauga  Creek  and  the  Tennessee  River;  that  based  on 
rainfall  events,  we  would  be  able  to  ultimately  reach  the  end  goal;  that  we  would  be 
implementing  software  used  by  the  Corps  of  Engineers  to  look  at  what  is  predicted.    He 
presented  a  synopsis  on  the  general  Nashville  Study where  a  flood  occurred  in  2010 with 
billions of dollars in damage and loss of lives; that we would be working together with various 
agencies and emergency responders would be brought to the table; that the first phase  is the 
Tennessee  River  and  South  Chickamauga  Creek.    He  mentioned  a  program  called  “Silver 
Jackets” sponsored by the Corps of Engineers.  He again stated that the scope of Phase One is 
the  Tennessee  River  and  South  Chickamauga  Creek  watersheds.    He  presented  maps  and 
profiles—the sort of GIS maps that emergency agencies use.  He again noted that this was being 
developed with the City of Nashville as to actual levels and response activities. 
 
Councilman Gilbert stated that he had two questions.  He wanted to know if Mr. Williams was 
referring to the South Chickamauga Creek warning system or to prevent flooding?  Mr. Williams 
responded that it was the warning system, referring to the event in Nashville, stating that it was 
not  cost  effective  but  cost  prohibitive.    Councilman  Gilbert  asked  about  the  work  being 
proposed, stating that he worked at a hospital.  He stated that city management is “not up and 
at it”.  He wanted to know what the Council’s role was, stating that he thought we should have 
“dummy situations” for “what‐if situations”; that if something happened, the Council needed to 
go forward—that it could be an earthquake or any other disaster.  He wanted to know what the 
Council would do as far as  leadership; that we needed to  look at the whole disaster situation 
more closely. 
 
Mr.  Norris  stated  that  the  City  does  have  plans  in  place  and  frequent  exercises  and  drills, 
mentioning  the  recent  tornado—that  it might not be  the best  in  the world, but we do have 
exercises and use it; that what we are talking about today is an excellent program to allow us to 
predict flooding; that there is real value to this engineering study as an early warning device. 
Councilman Gilbert stated  if the City had plans  in place that the Council needs to know what 
they know and also know the process; that the Council needed to know  in detail.   Mr. Norris 
responded that Bill Tittle could send each Councilperson a disk with the plans—that it would be 
very heavy reading.   
 
Councilman Murphy wanted to know in regards to the Nashville event—how many year event it 
was?  Mr. Williams responded that it varied.  Councilman Murphy noted that in looking at GIS 
maps and  flooding maps  there was a hundred year  line.   He asked about  the worth of a 500 
year event and  this being a useful exercise.   He wanted  to know  if  soil measurements were 
done, also?  The answer was “yes”. 



Page 4 
 

Councilwoman Scott  stated  that  this was an excellent presentation, and  she was glad  to  see 
that we are being pro‐active; that she was completely in favor of this.  She mentioned a figure 
of $135,000 and $150,000, wanting  to know which  it was?   Mr. Norris  responded $150,000.  
Mr.  Payne  explained  that  it was  $130,000  initially  but  funds were  available.    She  asked  the 
estimated time of completion and was told at the end of this calendar year for this phase. 
 
Councilman Benson stated that prediction is important.  He mentioned the flood in either 1973 
or 1974 when no warning came—that it happened so fast and we lost one student, reiterating 
that prediction is needed, and the schools need to know; that in 1973, no one knew the flood 
was coming; that prediction is important and also disbursement of the information.  Mr. Payne 
mentioned the GIS tools, which would be a focal point to all  involved—that there  is a way for 
information to be distributed. 
 
Councilman Murphy  asked  if  the  data would  be  shared with  other  infrastructures,  such  as 
hospitals, mentioning  the  situation  in New Orleans with  Katrina.   Mr.  Payne  answered  that 
information will be shared and not put on a shelf.   
 
There was only one resolution on next week’s agenda 7(c) that authorizes a Change Order for 
Brown  and  Caldwell  for  the  Equipment Maintenance  and  Reliability  Improvement  Program, 
increasing the contract by $250,000, for a revised contract amount of $l,823,800.00.   
 
This portion of the meeting adjourned at 4:10 P.M. 
 
At  this  time,  Daisy Madison  presented  the  2013  Capital  Budget,  an  item  not  listed  on  the 
agenda.  She stated that Ms. Simone White would go over the format. 
 
Ms. White gave an explanation of how the Budget is laid out for the Council’s ease.  She stated 
that the first 24 pages was a power point presentation; that page 25 was a “yellow” sheet and 
behind  it was  funded  items and  funding sources;  that page 28 was actually an  insert with an 
actual description with  a  coordination of pages.    Following  that was  another  “yellow”  sheet 
entitled “5 Year Plan”.  She noted that this was a three‐part document. 
 
Chairman Berz asked if there were any questions about the format?  There were none. 
 
Ms. Madison noted that this was Simone White’s first year to do this, under the  leadership of 
Fredia Kitchen; that this was organized in a fashion so that the Council could study it and come 
back with questions. 
 
Chairman Berz  stated  that  questions  should  be  addressed  to Dan  Johnson;  that  the  Council 
would come back in two weeks to discuss this. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:15 P.M. 



 
 


